
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
A G E N D A 

 
TOWN OF CHINCOTEAGUE 

 
July 5, 2016 - 7:00 P.M. - Council Chambers - Town Hall 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
INVOCATION BY COUNCILMAN ELLIS 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
OPEN FORUM / PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
STAFF UP-DATE 
 
AGENDA ADDITIONS/DELETIONS AND ADOPTION: 
 
 

1. Consider Adoption of the Minutes  
• Regular Council Meeting of  June 6, 2016                (Page 2 of 58) 
• Special Council Meeting of June 16, 2016                (Page 7 of 58) 
                            

2. Selection of the Vice Mayor 
 

3. Joint Public Hearing with the Planning Commission on Zoning Ordinance 7.4.12 Pennants   (Page 30 of 58)
                    

4. Eagle Scout Project (Lawrence H.  Lederer)                     (Page 33 of 58) 
 

5. Committee Appointments and Assignments                  (Page 43 of 58) 
 

6. The Center Appointments                              (Page 44 of 58) 
 
7. Harbor Committee Report of June 2, 2016 (Mayor Leonard)                                            (Page 45 of 58) 

(The following recommendation has been forwarded to the Council for Approval)  
• Recommend a future Travel Lift                  (Page 47 of 58) 

 
8. Public Safety Committee Report of June 7, 2016 (Mayor Leonard)                            (Page 49 of 58) 

(The following recommendation has been forwarded to the Council for Approval)  
• Possible adoption of the Towing Ordinance                                   (Page 53 of 58) 

 
9. Selection of a Wastewater Consultant                 (Page 56 of 58) 

 
10. Approval of Banking Account Signatures                (Page 58 of 58) 

 
11. Mayor & Council Announcements or Comments 
  
12. Closed Meeting in Accordance with Section 2.2-3711(A) (1) of the Code of Virginia. 

• Council Appointment (Town Attorney) 
 
 
ADJOURN:  



MINUTES OF THE JUNE 6, 2016 
CHINCOTEAGUE TOWN COUNCIL MEETING 

 
Council Members Present: 
John H. Tarr, Mayor 
Ellen W. Richardson, Vice Mayor 
J. Arthur Leonard, Councilman 
John N. Jester, Jr., Councilman 
Gene W. Taylor, Councilman  
Ben Ellis, Councilman 
James T. Frese, Councilman 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Mayor Taylor called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
INVOCATION 
Councilman Ellis offered the invocation. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Mayor Tarr led in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Mayor Tarr recognized and thanked Supervisor Tarr for attending the meeting. 
 
OPEN FORUM/PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
Mayor Tarr opened the floor for public participation.   
 

• Ms. Loretta Ganoe advised that she has had some communications informing her who  
would be the oversight entities for the Maddox Campground.  She advised that she has contacted 
VMRC to inquire if a joint permit application had been submitted.  She stated that Mr. Hank 
Badger who is an environmental engineer sent her a letter stating that they haven’t received a 
joint permit application from Bluewater or Burbage for the Maddox Campground.  She also 
stated that he advised that he went to the campground with their agent.  She stated that he doesn’t 
believe at that time they decided to submit anything.   
 
Ms. Ganoe stated that last week when they decided to build a water park at that facility she 
contacted Mr. Badger to see if they had discussed this with them.  She advised that Mr. Badger’s 
response was that a water park wasn’t mentioned and a discharge permit would be required by 
DEQ.  She also stated that he advised that a permit from VMRC would not be required unless a 
structure outfall was proposed channel-ward of the mean low water.  She also added that he 
contacted DEQ.  She wanted Council to know what she knew and offered her contact 
information.   
 

• Ms. Denise Bowden stated that she had two things to bring before Council.  She  
mentioned a request she made about signs throughout the Island to “ride with and walk against” 
traffic patterns.  She feels this would be beneficial to residents and visitors.  She also thanked 
Mayor Tarr for his years of service.   

Page 2 of 58



Mayor Tarr thanked Ms. Bowden.  He added that the Police Department has been reviewing 
rules and reviewing at other brochures. 
 

• Mrs. Jenny VanDame commended Mayor Tarr for his many years of service and wished  
him many years of success.  She stated that he is a gentleman, respectful and very patient.  She 
added that for his replacement she feels he will have some of the qualities that the present Mayor 
has.  She feels he will be able to fill the Mayor’s shoes. 
 

• Ms. Linda Ladas, Cakey Lane, addressed Council about the conditions of her road.  She  
stated that her neighbor was before Council and was advised of a draft policy regarding road 
maintenance of private roads.  She asked about the status of this policy. 
 
Town Manager Ritter asked Ms. Ladas to contact the office so they can email the Policy.  He 
added that the Policy is posted on the website as well.  He explained that it is a grading policy 
where the applicant must get 100% of the signatures of the adjoining property owners.  He stated 
that this is for liability issues adding that the property owners would have to purchase the stone. 
 
Ms. Ladas asked if this process could take effect now. 
 
Town Manager Ritter again stated that she would have to get 100% of the signatures of those 
property owners.  He added that there are forms for the signatures in the Town office.   
 

• Councilman Ellis advised that he received a phone call from Mr. Barry Abell who sent an  
email.  He asked if the letter could be read at the meeting in his absence.  He read the letter in its 
entirety which was about a letter he received from Town Manager Ritter regarding 2 monuments 
at the Mariner’s Point erected without Council’s permission.  He stated that 2 applications were 
included with the letters.  The letter then went into detail about the memorial, how Mariner’s 
Point came to be and the signboard at the Harbor.  He then explained a personal chain-of-events 
that led him to use the monies raised to put up the memorial.  Mr. Abell advised he is guilty of 
putting in the 2 granite stones and listed the reasons why.  He stated that he is willing to meet at 
another time about this matter.  He would like to make things right and requested to be a part of 
the meetings of the Recreational and Community Enhancement Committee.  He feels that the 
memorial reflects the land that it rests upon to recognize all of those lost at sea. 
 
STAFF UPDATE 
Planning Department 
Planning Director Marney reviewed the Planning Report that was included in the agenda packet.  
He mentioned the recent Planning Commission meeting and the upcoming public hearing on the 
Sign Ordinance changes.  He also reported on the FEMA flood insurance rate maps advising he 
was working on credits for the 15% discount.  He advised that the Town is waiting on the 
reimbursement for the Safe routes to School Trail.  Planning Director Marney also stated under 
the Wastewater Advisory Committee RFQ they received 4 responses which were reviewed at the 
June 1st meeting.  He added that all 4 responders will provide an oral presentation.  He reported 
that he attended the Transportation Advisory Committee meeting on May 24th with discussions 
about the flooding at the base of the bridge.  He also advised that he attended the 1st meeting of 
the Accomack Wallops Working Group on May 25th.  Town Planner Marney reported that they 

Page 3 of 58



have received a conditional use permit application for Maddox Campground.  He stated that due 
to an issue of their public notification they will not be at the June 14th meeting.  There will be a 
special meeting for this on July 12th at 5:00 p.m.   
 
Police Department 
Chief Mills advised that the monthly report is included in the packet.  He added that in May they 
had 361 calls for service, which is up by about 20 from last year.  He also stated that the 
Department presented 5 scholarships to graduating seniors from the high school.  He stated that 
they participated in the DMV Click it or Ticket Program.  He also added that they cancelled the 
Bicycle Rodeo because of inclement weather.  He advised that they also hosted the elementary 
school pre-K field trip to the Police Station. 
 
Public Works Department 
Public Works Director Spurlock stated that the only information he would like to add is that 
starting tomorrow morning there will be milling in the downtown area.  He advised that there 
will be no road closures but they will be down to one lane.  He also stated that next week Main 
Street will be closed to through traffic from Jester Street to Cleveland Street.  He added that all 
businesses will be accessible.   
 
Councilman Taylor asked if there would be enough milling to put a dent in the road for the 
woman who came about her private road. 
 
Public Works Director Spurlock advised there wouldn’t be enough. 
 
General Government 
Town Manager Ritter updated the report from the Emergency Medical Service.  He stated that 
they had the busiest May ever recorded.  He reported that they responded to 103 calls for the 
month of May which is 13 more than May of 2015.  He advised that the EMS staff is now trained 
in video intubation which is a camera into the airway so they can precisely place a breathing 
tube.  He stated that they are preparing for the Antares launch which is now scheduled for July 
15th.  He also stated that they have been working on delinquent Business Licenses.  Town 
Manager Ritter advised that June is open enrollment for insurance.  He stated that the swearing 
in ceremony is June 29th at 5:00 p.m.  He added that they are working on the quarterly 
newsletter.   
 
Councilman Jester asked Town Manager Ritter if during the meeting with NASA they discussed 
the safety zone and taking the beach. 
 
Town Manager Ritter responded that they didn’t at that time.  He added that there will be a 
meeting on the 15th at which time they will be able to release that information.  He stated that 
they were disappointed that they didn’t have a blast zone and whether they were going to have 
any closures at the beach along with the viewing sites.  
 
Councilman Jester asked if they gave a launch window. 
 

Page 4 of 58



Town Manager Ritter advised the launch window is 11:30 a.m. on July 15th.  He also added that 
they may push it back to August as they have a couple of launches scheduled with Space-X 
that’s supposed to be launched in July. 
 
Councilman Ellis stated that he had a couple of comments regarding the event calendar.  He 
asked for it to be updated. 
 
Town Manager Ritter responded that he will check into and correct this.   
 
Councilman Ellis also asked for the agenda for each of the meeting to be published once again 
on the website.   
 
Town Manager Ritter advised this would be done as well. 
 
AGENDA ADDITIONS/DELETIONS AND ADOPTION 
Councilman Jester motioned, seconded by Councilman Leonard to adopt the agenda as 
presented.  Unanimously approved. 
 
1. Consider Adoption of the Minutes 

• Regular Council Meeting of May 2, 2016 
Councilman Leonard motioned, seconded by Vice Mayor Richardson to adopt the minutes of the 
May 2, 2016 Regular Council Meeting as presented.  Unanimously approved. 
 
2. Presentation by the Chincoteague Island Library 
The Island Library President, Linda Ryan approached Council with a PowerPoint presentation.  
She reviewed the history of the Library which has been open for 20 years.  She reviewed the 
programs that are all open to the public.  She reported on the number people who utilize the 
Library regularly.  She reviewed the different programs which include the Children’s Programs, 
Tales for Tots, Summer Reading Challenge along with special programs including the Salisbury 
Zoo.   
 
Mrs. Ryan stated that Chief Mills read to the children along with the U. S. Coast Guard.  She 
stated that they visited Mr. Roe Terry with the Chincoteague Volunteer Fire Company and the 
Chincoteague Bay Field Station.  She stated that they also have adult programs.  She added that 
they have wifi both inside and out at the Library that is used by many people.  She reported that 
there are 6 computers for resident and visitor use.   
 
Mrs. Ryan continued to report that the Library has been a member of the Chincoteague Chamber 
of Commerce for over 10 years, the Downtown Merchants and they participate in their many 
events.  She stated that they belong to Chincoteague.com which has installed a new webcam.  
She stated that they have been recording and transcribing oral history of island residents.  She 
added that they now partner with the Chincoteague Museum to continue with the Oral History 
Program.  She continued by thanking Mrs. Nancy Cunningham who administers the very active 
Facebook page where they support many of the local organizations and programs.   
Mrs. Ryan continued to explain that the majority of the funding comes from private donations.  
She advised of the Eastern Shore Public Library and their many ways of support.  She stated that 

Page 5 of 58



the Town of Chincoteague donated some of the land and some of the funding for the new 
addition.  She added that they are very appreciative for their support.  She stated that last year 
Captain Carlton Leonard sponsored a luncheon cruise.  She announced that this year Captain 
Carlton Leonard will sponsor a sunset moonrise cruise on June 20th.   
 
Mrs. Ryan explained the future plans for the Library which includes hiring a fulltime librarian.  
She concluded that they have been successful in their fundraising efforts.  She stated that they 
take pride on not being a burden to the taxpayers.  She also stated that because of the increase in 
operating and programming costs they now need assistance from the Town.  She stated that 
although their impact on the community cannot be measured in dollars, they are hopeful that the 
Town will realize their value in improving and enhancing the lives of both residents and visitors 
by supporting their effort.   
 
Councilman Ellis stated that in terms of financial support the only support the Library doesn’t 
raise is for the part-time librarian which is paid for by the Eastern Shore Library. 
 
Mrs. Ryan advised that the ESL pays for the broadband and they help with computers and 
printers.  She stated that they have had enough success with the fundraising that they have been 
able to purchase their own computers.  She added that the Town also pays for their water which 
is also used at the Park.  She reported that their budget this year is $24,000 and traditionally they 
raise about $20,000 in private donations.   
 
Mayor Tarr thanked Mrs. Ryan and all that the Library does for the community.  He referred this 
matter to staff for review. 
 
3. Presentation by the Chincoteague Island YMCA 
Ms. Missy Denault with the Chincoteague Island YMCA also came before Council.  She 
reviewed what the YMCA is doing.  She advised that they have a Curious Kids Pre-School 
Program for 3 hours a day 4 days a week.  She stated they have swimming lessons at the Comfort 
Suites and the Refuge Inn for children from 3 to 13 years old.  She continued that they have an 
after school program for ages 5 – 12 years old.  She stated that they are getting ready for 8 weeks 
of camps ranging from pre-school to art and sports.  She also stated that they reach out off of the 
Island for a water safety program and chess along with other things.   
 
Ms. Denault stated that they help out with the Island’s soccer program.  She stated that they do 
sports with the kids at the Island Activity Center.  She also stated that they offer palates, yoga, 
step classes, core classes and Zumba.  She stated that they reach out as far as they can.  She 
added that they also have a senior program every other Thursday for a senior social.  She would 
like to see them offer it more often.  She stated that they are open for partnerships.  She advised 
that they are preparing to increase the YMCA.  She showed pictures of the YMCA and reviewed 
the plans for upgrades.  She also advised that they will have new top of the line equipment. 
Ms. Denault went on to explain the plans for the YMCA surrounding property such as a 
playground and basketball court.  She stated that they are looking at starting the upgrades in July.  
She thanked Council for allowing her to come this evening and added that they are always 
looking at partnering.   
 

Page 6 of 58



4. Public Hearing for the Fiscal Year 2017 Budget, Consisting of: 
●  Revenues for all Divisions ●  Trolley Division Expenses 
●  General Government  Fund Expenses ●  Harbor Division Expenses 
●  Water Division Expenses ●  Water & Gen Gov. Rate Sheets 
●  Total Main Street Fund Expenses  

Finance Director Hipple highlighted the FY 2017 budget.  She advised that there are no new 
taxes or increase in taxes this year.  She stated that the total budget is $6,823,714. She reviewed 
the different funds their expenses and the revenue to offset.  She advised that 2 bonds were paid 
off this fiscal year.  She explained that one of the bonds was for the water tower and was paid off 
in October.  She continued that the other bond was for the purchase of the Donald Leonard Park 
property was paid off this fiscal year as well.  She also stated that whenever there is an upgrade 
or repair in the water division it is expensive.  She explained that they are moving funds to the 
water reserves.  She added that the Town is putting in wireless meters to give the Town a better 
system of reading meters.  She also stated that the 5% Meals Tax will go to drainage again this 
year.  She added that the Police Department will be replacing their in-car cameras.  She 
concluded by explaining the transfers to the reserve accounts.   
 
Finance Director Hipple also stated that it has been an honor and privilege working with Mayor 
Tarr. 
 
Mayor Tarr thanked Finance Director Hipple.  He opened the public hearing. 
 
Mrs. Peggy Thomas asked about the wireless water meters.  She asked if all meters will be 
replaced.  She asked if the customers would be charged for the new meters. 
 
Mayor Tarr advised that they would not be charged.  He explained that the reason for the 
wireless meters is not for the ease of the workers.  He stated that it is because of the winter 2 
years ago with the water loss.  He also stated that with the number of tourist based homes that are 
unoccupied it is hard to know when a break happens.  He added that it will work off of software 
in the office that will detect a leak and alert the Town Office.  Mayor Tarr stated that it will read 
the meter every 15 seconds.  He also stated that they can set parameters to where it can be a big 
help to the Public Works.  He added that it can hopefully help those that have a water leak save 
some money.   
 
Mayor Tarr closed the public hearing.  He advised that the budget has to sit and they will be 
voting on the budget on June 16th. 
 
5. Joint Public Hearing with the Planning Commission on Zoning Ordinance 8.2.2 
Mayor Tarr called a joint Council and Planning Commission to order.  He asked Town Planner 
Marney to explain the reason for the public hearing. 
 
Town Planner Marney advised that the Planning Commission discussed an amendment to the 
Zoning Code at their March 8th meeting.  He stated that the Code change is necessary because 
the existing ordinance was identified as not in compliance with the State Code by the previous 
Town Attorney.  He stated that the existing permit to submit written comments from all property 
owners within 300’ of the boundary line of the property upon which the action is to be taken.  He 

Page 7 of 58



also stated that this is more restrictive than the State Code which only requires that all abutting 
properties and those across the street or road be notified.  He added that to rectify this, the exact 
wording used by the State was proposed after discussion by the Planning Commission and 
forwarded to Council for approval after a joint public hearing.   
 
Mayor Tarr opened the public hearing adding that this is a housekeeping item because the 
Town’s Code is more restrictive than the State Code.   
 
There were no comments. 
 
Mayor Tarr closed the public hearing.  He asked if the Planning Commission had a 
recommendation. 
 
Planning Commission Chairman Rosenberger advised that they recommend that the proposed 
change in the Zoning Ordinance 8.2.2 in the 3rd paragraph regarding the BZA be accepted. 
 

CURRENT ZONING: 8.2.2 (3RD PARAGRAPH) 
 
No special exception may be granted except after notice and hearing as provided by §15.2-2204. 
However, when giving any required notice to the owners, their agents or the occupants of the 
abutting property and property immediately across the street or road from property affected, the 
board may give such notice by first-class mail rather than by registered or certified mail. The 
board of zoning appeals shall require the applicant for a special use permit to submit written 
comments from all property owners within 300 feet of the boundary line of the property upon 
which action is to be taken, when application is made to appeal for a variance, the applicant shall 
submit signatures from all adjoining property owners including the property owners across the 
street or across bodies of water adjacent to or dividing two properties. The Board of Zoning 
Appeals may require the applicant to submit written comments from additional property owners. 
 
Councilman Frese motioned, seconded by Vice Mayor Richardson to approve the changes to the 
Ordinance 8.2.2 of the Town Code as presented.  Unanimously approved.  
 
6. Joint Public Hearing with the Planning Commission on the Sign Ordinance, 
Political Campaign Signs 
Mayor Tarr opened the joint public hearing with the Planning Commission on the proposed 
changes to the sign Ordinance, Political Campaign Signs.  He explained that it is increasing the 
banner from 30 to 32 square feet in section 7.4.4 under Banners and in 7.4.5 Political signs from 
16 to 32 square feet.  He asked if Town Planner Marney had anything further to add. 
 
Town Planner Marney stated that it is the same as the last one as the Town Attorney pointed out.  
He stated that the temporary signs are more restrictive than the permanent ones. 
 
There were no comments. 
Mayor Tarr closed the public hearing.  He asked the Planning Commission Chairman for their  
recommendation. 
 

Page 8 of 58



Planning Commission Chairman Rosenberger advised that they recommend that the proposed 
change in the Sign Ordinance 7.4, Temporary Signs and 7.4.5, Political Campaign Signs be 
accepted. 
 

 
CURRENT ZONING ODINANCE ARTICLE VII SIGNS 

 
Sec. 7.4 Temporary Signs 
 
7.4.4 Banners. On-premises banners shall not be more than 30 32 square feet in area. Total 
banners shall not exceed one per residence and one per business. Such placement shall not 
exceed 2 times per calendar year not to exceed 4 consecutive weeks for each placement. 
Nonprofit organizations are exempt from the above time limit provided the banner is removed 
within 7 days after the event has ended. Placement of such banners must comply with Article VII 
of the ordinance. Banners shall not be placed closer than ten feet from any property line. A 
permit is required. 
 
7.4.5 Political campaign signs. Owner of said parcel must give consent on the placement of such 
signs. Such signs shall not exceed 16 32 square feet in area and be located on private property. 
Political signs may not be placed in the sight distance triangle, and shall be removed no later than 
14 days after the election has occurred. 
 
Councilman Frese motioned, seconded by Councilman Jester to approve the proposed changes to 
the Sign Ordinance for Political Campaign Signs.  Unanimously approved. 
 
7. Mayor & Council Announcements or Comments 
Councilman Taylor thanked Mayor Tarr for all the time he has put in.  He stated that it has been 
a true pleasure as he has taught him a lot.  He added that they haven’t always seen eye-to-eye but 
they have never argued about things and always worked it out. 
 
Councilman Ellis commended the Chamber of Commerce and their luncheon was superb.  He 
stated that the businessman and citizen of the year were worthy recipients.  He also stated that 
this is the last Council meeting for Mayor Tarr and Councilman Jester.  He stated that it was his 
personal privilege and honor to serve with and learn from these 2 gentlemen. 
 
Councilman Jester stated that today is June 6th which was D-Day and 4,000 were killed just 
going ashore.  He recommended going to the WWII memorial in Washington.  He stated that 
when he retired in 2006 he didn’t think he would be a member of the Town Council.  He stated 
that he had been through some rough years with 911 at the Pentagon.  He stated that he would 
come home to take it easy and someone recommended he run for Town Council.  He decided to 
run and ended up running again.  He feels it was his way to do something for his community that 
he loves.  He stated that it has been a real pleasure working with the Town staff and they have a 
fantastic staff that does so many things.  He stated that the community doesn’t really know what 
all this government does. 
 

Page 9 of 58



Councilman Jester stated that when you turn on the tap it’s not just water it’s a $10,000,000 
operation to get you that glass of water.  He also stated that it’s so many things that the Town 
does with a Town staff that does a fantastic job.  He added that it has been a pleasure working 
with the members of Council.  He also stated that when he retired and came back he didn’t know 
Mayor Tarr.  He stated that he has gotten to know him and he is a great guy that has put in many 
hours over the years for the Town well beyond what the rest of Council does.  He thinks it’s time 
for him to relax.  He also stated to the new Council and Mayor to look forward and not 
backwards.  He added that status quo isn’t any good.  He feels this Town needs to keep moving 
forward and servicing the community.  Councilman Jester commented further for Council to 
continue looking forward and not be afraid to change.   
 
Councilman Jester stated that in regards to Mr. Abell’s letter there are a lot of incorrect things 
and misquoted things.  He advised that he never told the Scout to change the sign.  He stated that 
he advised that all he told him was that the Park is named Mariner’s Point.  He thanked his wife 
for putting up with this for 8 years.  He thanked the community and the volunteers for all they do 
for the community. 
 
Councilman Leonard congratulated Mr. Eddie Lewis, Mr. Gene Wayne Taylor and Ms. Denise 
Bowden for winning the election.  He stated that the next time they come to a Town Council 
meeting they will be sitting in these seats.  He invited everyone to come out on the 29th at 5:00 
p.m. to watch them be sworn in.  He also thanked Councilman Jester and Mayor Tarr for serving 
the community for all the years.  He also thanked Mayor Tarr for the opportunity of being the 
Mayor of Chincoteague.  He advised that when they had their meeting he had a positive 
explanation of what goes on in the Town and how he thought it should continue to go.  He 
thanked them for opening his eyes and keeping him involved in the Town. 
 
Vice Mayor Richardson stated that Wednesday is the High School’s graduation and Council is 
invited.  He stated that the scholarships were already given at a separate ceremony.  She added 
that the Council has been invited and there will be reserved seats for them.  She also stated that it 
has been her privilege and pleasure to serve with Councilman Jester and Mayor Tarr.  She 
advised that she didn’t really know him until serving with him.  She also appreciates the 
knowledge he has and has learned a lot from him.  Vice Mayor Richardson stated that she has 
known Mayor Tarr for a long time.  She doesn’t believe they’ve had any knock down drag out 
fights but she appreciates his knowledge.   
 
Mayor Tarr stated that he isn’t going to give any long speeches as he wears his emotions on his 
sleeves and the thanked everyone.   
 
8. Closed Meeting in Accordance with Section 2.2-3711(A)(1&2) of the Code of 
Virginia. 

• Real Property 
• Council Appointment for the Town Attorney 
• Personnel 

Councilman Taylor moved, seconded by Councilman Leonard to convene a closed meeting 
under Section 2.2-3711(A)(1) of the Code of Virginia to discuss personnel matters. Unanimously 
approved. 

Page 10 of 58



 
Councilman Frese moved, seconded by Councilman Jester to reconvene in regular session.  
Unanimously approved. 
  
Councilman Frese moved, seconded by Councilman Jester to adopt a resolution of certification 
of the closed meeting.   
  
WHEREAS, the Chincoteague Town Council has convened a closed meeting on this date 
pursuant to an affirmative recorded vote and in accordance with the provisions of the Virginia 
Freedom of Information Act; and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 2.2-3711(A)(1) of the Code of Virginia requires a certification by this 
Town Council that such closed meeting was conducted in conformity with Virginia law; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Chincoteague Town Council hereby certifies 
that to the best of each member's knowledge, (i) only public business matters lawfully exempted 
from open meeting requirements by Virginia law were discussed in the closed meeting to which 
this certification resolution applies, and (ii) only such public business matters as were identified 
in the motion convening the closed meeting were heard, discussed or considered by the Town 
Council. 
 
VOTE:  Ayes- Jester, Frese, Leonard, Taylor, Ellis, Richardson 
  Nays- None 
  Absent- None 
 
Adjourn 
Vice Mayor Richardson motioned, seconded by Councilman Leonard to adjourn.  Unanimously 
approved. 
 
 
______________________________  _____________________________ 
Mayor       Attest:          Town Manager        

Page 11 of 58



MINUTES OF THE JUNE 16, 2016 
CHINCOTEAGUE SPECIAL TOWN COUNCIL MEETING 

 
Council Members Present: 
John H. Tarr, Mayor 
Ellen W. Richardson, Vice Mayor 
J. Arthur Leonard, Councilman 
John N. Jester, Jr., Councilman 
Gene W. Taylor, Councilman  
Ben Ellis, Councilman 
James T. Frese, Councilman 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Mayor Taylor called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
INVOCATION 
Councilman Taylor offered the invocation. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Mayor Tarr led in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Prior to Public Participation Mayor Tarr presented Councilman John Nelson Jester, Jr. with a 
plaque which he read.  He advised that it has been an honor and pleasure serving with him.  He 
added that he learned a lot from him. 
 
Councilman Jester thanked him. 
 
OPEN FORUM/PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
Mayor Tarr opened the floor for public participation.   
 

• Mr. Lawrence Henry Lederer advised that he is trying to get together an Eagle Scout 
project by the Watermen’s Memorial such as a picnic table.  He asked for information. 
 
Mayor Tarr stated that once he decides on the project he can meet with Town Manager Ritter and 
Public Works Director Spurlock and work out the details.  He requested a sketch that will be 
returned to Council for approval. 
 

• Mr. Spiro Papadopoulos requested to add an item on the agenda for Council to discuss 
mosquito control, contract spraying and chemicals.  He explained that everyone has experienced 
that aerial spraying is the most effective with the upcoming issues of public health regarding the 
Zika Virus.  He stated that everyone wants to know what contract spraying means.  He also 
suggested discussing the trash fee that is included in the trash bill.  He asked how the money is 
used and for what purpose.  
 
Mayor Tarr asked Public Works Director Spurlock to address the mosquito control budget. 
 

Page 12 of 58



Public Works Director Spurlock stated that the contract spraying is only the aerial spraying.  He 
stated that there is a second line item for the insurance which is cost associated with the aerial 
spraying.   
 
Mr. Papadopoulos asked how they arrived to the aerial spraying figure.   
 
Public Works Director Spurlock advised that this is 6 flights. 
 
Mr. Papadopoulos asked if it is $4,000 per spraying. 
 
Public Works Director Spurlock stated that this is just the cost for the airplane.  He further stated 
that the additional cost is the insurance and the chemicals.  He added that the cost of an 
individual flight is in excess of $13,000.   
 
Mr. Papadopoulos stated that the decision to spray by airplane is based on the number of 
complaints they receive.  He added that there is always some sort of excuse that the weather isn’t 
permissive.  He asked if 6 would be enough for the season.  
 
Public Works Director Spurlock advised that it isn’t based on phone calls.  He explained that 
they actually go out and get mosquito population counts at different sites on the island. 
 
Mr. Papadopoulos stated that they definitely don’t have a site up-the-neck. 
 
Public Works Director Spurlock advised there are 2 sites on the north end of the island.  He 
stated one is Wildcat and the other is by the high school.   
 
Mr. Papadopoulos feels this leaves a lot of areas unprotected.  He suggested adding more test 
sites for the spraying. 
 
AGENDA ADDITIONS/DELETIONS AND ADOPTION 
Councilman Taylor motioned, seconded by Vice Mayor Richardson to adopt the agenda as 
presented.  Unanimously approved. 
 
1. Possible Adoption of the Fiscal Year 2017 Budget, Consisting of: 

●  Revenues for all Divisions ●  Trolley Division Expenses 
●  General Government  Fund Expenses ●  Harbor Division Expenses 
●  Water Division Expenses ●  Water & Gen Gov. Rate Sheets 
●  Total Main Street Fund Expenses  

Town Manager Ritter highlighted the FY 2017 budget.  He stated that the total budget is 
$6,823,714.  He also stated there are no tax increases or water rates.  He reviewed some specific 
budgeted items.   
 
Mayor Tarr asked if Council had any questions regarding the budget.  There were none.  He also 
asked if anyone from the audience had any questions.  There were none.  He added that the 
budget has been properly advertised.   
 
Town Manager Ritter reminded Council that the motion has to appropriate the funds for the 
disbursement of the budget. 

Page 13 of 58



 
Councilman Taylor motioned, seconded by Vice Mayor Richardson to adopt the budget for the 
fiscal year 2017 as presented including the real estate tax rate of $0.07/100 of assessed value, 
tangible property tax rate of $0.85/100, tangible property tax relief of 70%, excise tax (meals) at 
5%, excise tax (transient occupancy) at 4%, General Government fee schedules, Water fee 
schedule and appropriate the funds for disbursement.  Unanimously approved 
 

Expenditure Name Number FY'17 Expenditures 
 

FUND 10 - General Fund 
Fund 10 - General Fund/Department 50 - General Government 
Salaries 
Mayor        5010-0101   $ 4,800 
Council       5010-0102   $ 23,040 
Town Office Staff      5010-1001   $ 431,561 
Emergency Medical Staff     5010-1002   $ 315,165 
Overtime       5010-1003   $ 35,000 
Subtotal          $ 809,566 
Benefits 
Social Security    5010-2001   $ 58,000 
Hospitalization      5010-2101  $ 78,043 
Retirement       5010-2201   $ 75,000 
Life Insurance      5010-2202   $ 4,354 
Unemployment - All Employees    5020-2103   $ 7,420 
Subtotal          $ 222,817 
Expenses 
Bank Charges       5030-3100   $ 4,000 
Building Administrator Expense    5030-3101   $ 100 
Cleaning       5030-3102   $ 14,750 
Planning Commission     5030-3103   $ 40 
Board of Zoning Appeals     5030-3104   $ 40 
Building Permit Surcharge     5030-3105   $ 923 
Board of Building Code Appeal    5030-3106   $ 25 
Emergency Medical Clothing    5030-3107   $ 2,400 
EMS Cell Allowance      5030-3108   $ 1,500 
Insurance       5030-3401   $ 110,000 
Auditing       5030-3501   $ 25,500 
Donations       5030-3601   $ 9,600 
Fire Department Donation     5030-3602   $ 21,000 
Civic Center (TOTAX )     5030-3701   $ 110,000 
Tourism - 5% Chamber & 5% Civic Center   5030-3705   $ 74,000 
ANPDC Membership      5030-4030   $ 7,000 
Scholarship       5030-4301   $ 1,000 
Office Supplies/Publications     5030-4401   $ 12,500 
Office Equipment/Software Maintenance   5030-4402   $ 35,600 
Postage       5030-4403   $ 11,360 
Tax Bills & Conversion     5030-4404   $ 1,538 
Motor Vehicle License     5030-4501   $ 1,800 

Page 14 of 58



Travel & Training      5030-4801   $ 4,500 
Mayor's Expense      5030-4901   $ 300 
Council's Expense      5030-4902   $ 1,000 
Town Manager's Expense     5030-4903   $ 250 
Attorney/Legal Consultants     5030-5101   $ 50,600 
Drug/Alcohol Testing     5030-5201   $ 1,500 
Christmas Dinner      5030-5501   $ 2,500 
Dues        5030-6101   $ 4,650 
VML Conference      5030-6102   $ 1,000 
Advertising & Website     5030-7101   $ 11,300 
Building Maintenance     5030-7301   $ 19,880 
Electricity       5030-7401   $ 12,000 
Heating Oil       5030-7402   $ 5,650 
VA Fire Programs/CVFC     5030-7601   $ 10,250 
EOC Operations/Training     5030-7602   $ 2,050 
Special Projects      5030-7701   $ 7,500 
Pony Penning Expense     5030-7702   $ 6,200 
Deer D-Pop Program      5030-7703   $ 1,200 
Telephone Bills      5030-8202   $ 28,200 
Health Insurance - Retirees     5030-8401   $ 28,500 
Insurance-Retiree, Spouses & Others   5030-8402   $ 5,500 
Retiree Prescription Assistance    5030-8404   $ 4,600 
Miscellaneous      5030-8501   $ 5,400 
911 Addressing      5030-8505   $ 400 
Cemetery Cleanup      5030-8600   $ 1,500 
Va Commission for the Arts     5030-8700   $ 10,000 
Transfer to Main Street Project    5030-8800   $ 35,000 
Transfer to Trolley Fund     5030-8900   $ 25,000 
VOLSAP For Volunteer Firemen    5030-8912   $ 2,875 
Transfer to Beach/Recreation/Tourism Reser ve  5030-8913   $ 251,691 
Recreation-Tourism Expense 1% of TOTAX  5030-8914   $ - 
Subtotal          $ 985,671 
Capital Improvements 
Property Acquisition Reserve    5090-9704   $ 25,000 
Property Acquisition      5090-9705   $ 254,000 
Office Equipment      5090-9709   $ 4,000 
Consultant       5090-9750   $ 50,000 
Software       5090-9760   $ 6,528 
Subtotal          $ 339,528 
Subtotal Fund 10 Dept 50       $2,357,582 
 
Fund 10 - General Fund/Department 60 - Public Works Administration 
Salaries 
Salaries       6010-1001   $ 116,808 
Overtime       6010-1003   $ 598.50 
Subtotal          $ 117,407 
Benefits 
Social Security      6010-2001   $ 8,982 

Page 15 of 58



Hospitalization      6010-2101   $ 12,245.00 
Retirement       6010-2201   $ 14,500.00 
Life Insurance      6010-2202   $ 515.00 
Subtotal          $ 36,242 
Expenses 
Office Supplies & Equipment    6030-4401   $ 500 
Street Maintenance     6030-4501   $ 1,300 
Street Signs / 911      6030-4502   $ 3,000 
Street Lights       6030-4503   $ 24,000 
Gasoline/Diesel      6030-4701   $ 31,500 
Oil/Grease       6030-4703   $ 3,000 
Tools Shop       6030-4704   $ 3,000 
Travel/Training      6030-4801   $ 1,250 
Clothing / Uniforms     6030-5202   $ 5,720 
Building Maintenance     6030-7301   $ 3,500 
Equipment Repairs      6030-7302   $ 14,850 
Safety        6030-7303   $ 1,250 
Vehicle PMs       6030-7304   $ 1,400 
Tires        6030-7305   $ 2,300 
Garage Supplies      6030-7306   $ 2,500 
Vehicle Repairs      6030-7307   $ 6,500 
Electricity       6030-7401   $ 6,500 
LP Gas       6030-7402   $ 2,100 
Tipping Fees       6030-7501   $ 1,000 
Sanitation Contract      6030-7502   $ 370,282 
Miscellaneous      6030-8501   $ 1,800 
Subtotal          $ 487,252 
Capital Improvements 
Vehicle       6090-9101   $ 45,000 
Equipment       6090-9511   $ 25,000 
Subtotal          $ 70,000 
Subtotal Fund 10 Dept 60       $710,900 
 
Fund 10 - General Fund/Department 61 - Mosquito Control 
Salaries 
Salaries       6110-1001   $ 38,538 
Overtime       6110-1003   $ 500 
Subtotal          $ 39,038 
Benefits 
Social Security      6110-2001   $ 2,986 
Subtotal          $ 2,986 
Expenses 
Insurance       6130-3401   $ 8,100 
Office Supplies      6130-4401   $ 200 
Gasoline       6130-4701   $ 4,400 
Tools & Small Equipment     6130-4704   $ 1,100 
Chemicals       6130-4705   $ 46,000 
Contract Spraying      6130-4706  $ 24,000 

Page 16 of 58



Travel/Training/Conference     6130-4801   $ 300 
Uniforms       6130-5202   $ 200 
Sundry       6130-6101   $ 450 
Equipment Repairs/Maintenance    6130-7302   $ 2,000 
Safety Equipment      6130-7303   $ 400 
Vehicle Maintenance      6130-7304   $ 1,200 
Subtotal          $ 88,350 
Capital Improvements 
Equipment       6190-9124   $ 8,000 
Drainage       6190-9125   $ 35,000 
Subtotal          $ 43,000 
Subtotal Fund 10 Dept 61       $173,374 
 
Fund 10 - General Fund/Department 63 - Public Works Facilities 
Salaries 
Salaries       6310-1001   $ 212,688 
Overtime       6310-1003   $ 1,700 
Subtotal          $ 214,388 
Benefits 
Social Security      6310-2001   $ 16,401 
Hospitalization      6310-2101   $ 33,580 
Retirement       6310-2201   $ 27,224 
Life Insurance      6310-2202   $ 1,021 
Subtotal          $ 78,226 
Expenses 
Seasonal Decorations & Banners    6330-4100   $ 8,000 
Tools        6330-4704   $ 900 
Electricity       6330-7401   $ 3,800 
Sundry       6330-8501   $ 300 
Park & Recreation Expense     6330-8590   $ 31,352 
Vandalism Repairs      6330-8600   $ 2,000 
Boat Ramp Expense      6330-8700   $ 22,000 
Boat Ramp Repair Reserve     6330-8701   $ 3,000 
Subtotal          $ 71,352 
Subtotal Fund 10 Dept 63       $363,965 
 
Fund 10 - General Fund/Department 65 - Public Works Roads 
Salaries 
Salaries       6510-1001   $ 124,265 
Overtime       6510-1003   $ 2,000 
Subtotal          $ 126,265 
Benefits 
Social Security      6510-2001   $ 9,506 
Hospitalization      6510-2101   $ 22,080 
Retirement       6510-2201   $ 15,011 
VSRS/Life Insurance      6510-2202   $ 596 
Subtotal          $ 47,194 
Expenses 

Page 17 of 58



Snow Removal      6530-4102   $ 1,000 
Pavement Maintenance     6530-4150   $ 290,427 
Sidewalks       6530-4201   $ 60,000 
Traffic Control Operations     6530-4202   $ 1,500 
Roadside Services      6530-4250   $ 3,000 
Drainage Maintenance    6530-6250   $ 50,000 
Traffic Control Devices     6530-7202   $ 20,000 
Electricity       6530-7450   $ 69,458 
Engineering       6530-8600   $ 5,000 
Subtotal          $ 500,385 
Subtotal Fund 10 Dept 65       $673,843 
 
Fund 10 - General Fund/Department 70 - Police Department 
Salaries 
Salaries       7010-1001   $ 485,000 
Overtime       7010-1003   $ 8,500 
Subtotal          $ 493,500 
Benefits 
Social Security      7010-2001   $ 37,753 
Hospitalization      7010-2101   $ 57,000 
Retirement       7010-2201   $ 67,035 
Life Insurance      7010-2202   $ 2,323 
Subtotal          $ 164,111 
Expenses 
Gasoline       7030-4701   $ 17,500 
Travel/Training      7030-4801   $ 8,000 
Uniform Allowance (Officers)    7030-5201   $ 6,000 
Uniforms - Town      7030-5202   $ 2,500 
Office Supplies/Equipment Maintenance   7030-7300   $ 7,500 
Equipment Repairs & Supplies    7030-7302   $ 4,500 
Vehicle Maintenance      7030-7304   $ 5,000 
Drug Enforcement      7030-7901   $ 5,000 
Academy Dues      7030-7903   $ 3,800 
Bicycle Patrol       7030-7904   $ 300 
Community/Youth Programs     7030-7905   $ 20,000 
Grant Funded Expenditures     7030-7906   $ 10,000 
Ammunition       7030-7907   $ 3,000 
Cell Phone Allowance     7030-8203   $ 3,100 
Police Accreditation      7030-8301   $ 4,000 
Sundry       7030-8501   $ 1,000 
Subtotal         $101,200 
Capital Improvements 
Patrol Vehicle      7090-9650   $ 29,000 
Surveillance Equipment     7090-9675   $ 40,000 
Tasers        7090-9687   $ 15,000 
Subtotal          $ 84,000 
Subtotal Fund 10 Dept 70       $842,811 
 

Page 18 of 58



Fund 10 - General Fund/Department 75 - Emergency Dispatch 
Salaries 
Salaries       7510-1001   $ 195,000 
Overtime       7510-1003   $ 2,500 
Subtotal          $ 197,500 
Benefits 
Social Security      7510-2001   $ 14,900 
Hospitalization      7510-2101   $ 23,000 
Retirement       7510-2201   $ 14,000 
Life Insurance      7510-2202   $ 590 
Subtotal          $ 52,490 
Expenses 
Travel/Training      7530-4801   $ 3,000 
Uniform Allowance - Dispatchers    7530-5201   $ 1,600 
Uniforms (Town for Dispatchers)    7530-5202   $ 500 
Office Supplies/Equipment Maintenance   7530-7300   $ 14,500 
Sundry       7530-8501   $ 150 
Subtotal          $ 19,750 
Subtotal Fund 10 Dept 75       $269,740 
Total Fund 10         $5,392,215 
 
Fund 20 - Main Street Project 
Expenses 
Maintenance       2030-7101   $ 2,000 
Electricity       2030-7401   $ 1,250 
Subtotal          $ 3,250 
Capital Improvements 
Main Street Project Phase 2D    2090-9810   $ 35,000 
Subtotal          $ 35,000 
Total Fund 20         $38,250 
Fund 30 - Curtis Merritt Harbor 
Salaries 
Salaries       8010-1001   $ 28,651 
Overtime       8010-1003   $ 200 
Subtotal          $ 28,851 
Benefits 
Social Security 8010-2001 $ 2,420 
Hospitalization 8010-2101 $ 3,000 
Retirement 8010-2201 $ 3,680 
Life Insurance 8010-2202 $ 100 
Subtotal $ 9,200 
Expenses 
Administrative Expense - Town    8030-3100   $ 7,426 
Operation/Maintenance/Etc.     8030-7300   $ 32,988 
Driveway Stones      8030-7305   $ 1,000 
Fuel Purchase       8030-7315   $ 110,000 
Sundry       8030-8501   $ 1,000 
Subtotal          $ 152,414 

Page 19 of 58



Capital Improvements 
Parking Paving      8090-9134   $ 15,000 
Subtotal          $ 15,000 
Total Fund 30         $205,465 
Fund 70 - Trolley 
Salaries 
Salaries       3010-0100   $ 35,500 
Subtotal          $ 35,500 
Benefits 
Social Security      3010-2001   $ 2,840 
Subtotal          $ 2,840 
Expenses 
Insurance & Bonding      3030-3401   $ 3,000 
Communication Service     3030-4400   $ 800 
Printing & Reproduction     3030-4401   $ 2,200 
Advertising & Promotion     3030-4402   $ 900 
Education & Training     3030-4403   $ 1,500 
Cleaning Supplies      3030-4404   $ 100 
Supplies & Materials (Other)     3030-4406   $ 100 
Memberships and Dues     3030-4407   $ 150 
Travel & Meals      3030-4408   $ 1,500 
Fuel and Lubricants      3030-4701   $ 10,000 
Tires & Tubes      3030-4702   $ 600 
Uniforms       3030-4703   $ 350 
Parts        3030-4704   $ 750 
Drug and Alcohol Testing     3030-5201   $ 1,300 
Equipment Repairs/Maintenance    3030-7302   $ 7,000 
Rent        3030-8505   $ 12,000 
Subtotal          $ 42,250 
Total Fund 70         $80,590 
Fund 80 - Water 
Salaries 
Salaries       6210-1001   $ 246,903 
Overtime       6210-1003   $ 3,756 
Pump Duty       6210-1004   $ 16,901 
Subtotal          $ 267,560 
Benefits 
Social Security      6210-2001   $ 20,468 
Hospitalization      6210-2101   $ 34,546 
Retirement       6210-2201   $ 31,604 
Life Insurance      6210-2202   $ 1,185 
Subtotal          $ 87,803 
Expenses 
Office Supplies/Equipment Maintenance   6230-4401   $ 2,500 
Postage       6230-4403   $ 4,000 
Gasoline & Diesel      6230-4701   $ 5,700 
Tools        6230-4704   $ 1,200 
Chemicals       6230-4705   $ 14,608 

Page 20 of 58



Travel & Training      6230-4801   $ 2,500 
Uniforms       6230-5202   $ 1,158 
Dues/Licenses      6230-6101   $ 1,200 
Building Maintenance/Rehab    6230-7301   $ 5,000 
Safety       6230-7303   $ 500 
Vehicle Maintenance      6230-7304   $ 1,100 
Raw Water Purchase (NASA)    6230-7400   $ 500 
Electricity       6230-7401   $ 57,897 
LP Gas       6230-7402   $ 600 
Distribution & Repairs     6230-8101   $ 48,041 
Supply Repairs      6230-8103   $ 18,250 
Cell Phone Allowance     6230-8202   $ 900 
Miss Utility       6230-8204   $ 1,000 
Sundry       6230-8501   $ 200 
Reimbursement to Fund 10     6230-8601   $ 88,239 
Regulation Compliance     6230-8750  $ 5,000 
State Groundwater Permits     6230-8770   $ 10,000 
Transfer to Water Reserve     6230-8900   $ 149,262 
Engineering       6230-9100   $ 5,000 
Subtotal          $ 424,355 
Capital Improvements 
Water Main Extensions     6290-9101   $ 5,000 
Interest on Water Bond Supply Line    6290-9504   $ 6,218 
Water Bond - Supply Line Main Street   6290-9505   $ 117,654 
Water Bonds       6290-9506   $ 149,042 
Interest on Water Bond     6290-9507   $ 32,558 
Waterline Line Replacement     6290-9600   $ 12,000 
Wireless Meters         $ 5,003 
Subtotal          $ 327,475 
Total Fund 80         $1 ,107,194 
TOTAL ALL FUNDS        $6,823,714 
 

Town of Chincoteague 
FY'17 Budget Revenues 

Revenue Name      Number   Budgeted 
Fund 10 - General Government 
Real Estate Tax Levy      4001-0100   $ 634,200 
Tangible Property Tax Levy     4001-0125   $ 204,257 
Delinquent Tax Collection, Int. & Pen.   4001-0130   $ 35,000 
Meals Tax       4001-0500   $ 740,000 
Bank Franchise Tax      4001-0600   $ 50,000 
Sales Tax       4010-0100   $ 140,000 
Business License      4010-0200   $ 128,500 
Motor Vehicle License     4010-0300   $ 80,000 
Utilities Tax       4010-0500   $ 210,000 
Transient Occupancy Tax     4010-0600   $ 1,006,763 
Fines        4015-0100   $ 40,000 
Interest on Savings      4020-0100   $ 15,000 

Page 21 of 58



Banner Donations      4041-0100   $ 2,432 
Cemetery Cleanup Donations    4041-0150   $ 1,000 
User Fees       4041-0200   $ 25,000 
Building Permits      4041-0500   $ 50,000 
Zoning Advertisements     4041-0600   $ 2,000 
Grants/Litter       4045-0100   $ 2,585 
Sale of Capital Assets     4049-0100   $ 500 
Health Insurance-Retirees Spouse    4051-0200   $ 8,100 
VA Fire Programs      4051-0300   $ 11,910 
Payment in lieu of Taxes - USFWS    4061-0100   $ 6,400 
Harbor Administration     4061-0105   $ 7,426 
Rental Income - Trolley     4061-0106   $ 12,000 
Tower Rent       4061.0107   $ 5,520 
Communications Tax      4071-0100   $ 200,000 
Personal Property Relief Act     4071-0200   $ 164,250 
Mobile Home Sales Tax     4071-0300   $ 7,700 
Recovered Cost from Water     4101-0200   $ 88,239 
Public Works Miscellaneous     4201-0100   $ 10,000 
Miscellaneous Income     4303-0100   $ 15,000 
Solid Waste Collection Fee     4303-0400   $ 394,439 
Law Enforcement Funds     4401-0100   $ 107,251 
Police Miscellaneous      4401-0125   $ 1,000 
Police Donations      4401-0150   $ 20,000 
Police Grants       4401-0160   $ 10,000 
Dispatch Revenue      4401-0200   $ 22,500 
VDOT Maintenance Funds     4501-0100   $ 673,843 
Road Permit Fees      4501-0101   $ 400 
VA Commission for the Arts - Grant    4545-0140   $ 5,000 
Transfer from General Fund Savings    4701-1000   $ 214,000 
Transfer from Land Acquisition       $ 40,000 
Total Fund 10         $5,392,215 
Fund 20 - Main Street Project 
Program Income      4501-0100   $ 3,250 
Transfer from General Fund     4501-8900   $ 35,000 
Total Fund 20         $38,250 
 
Fund 30 - Curtis Merritt Harbor 
Interest on Harbor Savings     4031-0100   $ 225 
Harbor Rent       4031-1000   $ 66,534 
Subleases       4031-1002   $ 17,400 
Dry/Winter Storage      4031-1003   $ 850 
Loading Dock      4031-1004   $ 2,650 
Fuel Revenue       4031-1058   $ 114,186 
Transfer from Long-Term Reserve    4910-8900   $ 3,620 
Total Fund 30         $205,465 
 
Fund 70 - Trolley 
Trolley Grants      4501-0100   $ 48,590 

Page 22 of 58



Program Income      4501-0110   $ 7,000 
Transfer from General Fund     4501-8900   $ 25,000 
Total Fund 70         $80,590 
 
Fund 80 - Water 
Water Rent       4101-0100   $ 1,060,334 
Water Adjustments      4101-2200   $ (500) 
Waterline Extensions      4131-0100   $ 10,000 
Service Connections      4131-0200   $ 10,500 
Interest on Water Savings     4131-0300   $ 360 
Miscellaneous      4131-0400   $ 500 
Availability Fees      4131-0500   $ 26,000 
Total Fund 80         $1,107,194 
TOTAL ALL FUNDS        $6 ,823,714 
 

WATER RATES, CHARGES AND BILLING FOR FY 17 

A minimum rate applies to all accounts after the minimum allowed usage and an additional 
dollar amount is applied per 1000 gallons. The following table applies to 5/8 and 3/4 residential, 
commercial and other size water meter connections, subject to a review by council for a 3% 
increase each year.  

Meter Size (inches)  Minimum Bill 
(Quarter)  

Allowed Usage 
(gallons)  

Per 1,000 gallons Over 
Allowance  

5/8 & 3/4  $29 residential  
$47 commercial  

6,000  
6,000  

$4.36 
$5.16 

1  $115  15,000  $5.16  

1.5  $228 30,000  
$5.16 

2  $365 48,000  
$5.16 

3  $727 96,000  
$5.16 

4  $1,135  150,000  
$5.16 

6*   $2,272 300,000  
$5.16 

8  $3,634 480,000  
$5.16 

 

*One meter currently in the system is to be charged $6.52 per 1000 gallons over the allowed 
usage.  
Connection Fees  
New connections to the water system shall be charged at the rate below plus all additional related 
costs incurred by the town:  
 $670 for a 5/8" or 3/4" Meter connecting pipe  
 $1,176 for a 1" connecting pipe  
 $1,570 for a 2" connecting pipe  
 

Page 23 of 58



Availability Fee Schedule  

Meter Size (inches)  Availability Fee  
5/8 & 3/4  $3,708  

1  $9,270   

1.5  $18,540  

2  $29,664   

3  $59,328   

4  $92,700   

6  $185,400   

8  $296,640  
Condominiums are charged an availability fee of $3,819 per living unit but supplied by a master 
meter with the minimum billing based on the size of the meter.  
 
Billing and other charges  

• No service shall be reconnected without payment of all delinquent charges plus a 
reconnecting charge 

 of $75.00.  
• Any person having service disconnected by the Town for purposes other than plumbing 

repairs, shall be charged a fee of $50.00.  
• A one-time seasonal shut-off and turn-on fee shall be waived. 
• A change of ownership fee of  $50.00  
• An administrative fee will be applied to all Water main extensions, by the Town for a 

maximum of $200 or 25% 
 
Water bill adjustments  
If, after checking or testing the meter, the reading is found to be correct, the account will be 
charged $50.00. If the meter or reading is found to be faulty or incorrect, the water bill will be 
adjusted accordingly.  
 
2. Consider Adoption of the State Motor Vehicle Code, Chapter 58, Traffic and 
Vehicles 
Town Manager Ritter advised that this is a routine housekeeping item that has to be done each 
year.  He added that this is only correcting 2015 to the current year 2016.   
 
Councilman Jester motioned, seconded by Councilman Leonard to adopt the State Motor Vehicle 
Code, Chapter 58, Traffic and Vehicles and to take effect July 1, 2016.  Unanimously approved. 

Chapter 58 
TRAFFIC AND VEHICLES* 

Article I. In General 
Sec. 58-1.  Compliance with chapter; violations and penalties generally.  
 (a) It shall be unlawful for any person to violate or fail to comply with any of the 
sections of this chapter or of any rule or regulation promulgated pursuant to this chapter.  
 

Page 24 of 58



 (b) Every person convicted of a violation of any of the sections of this chapter for 
which no other penalty is provided shall be punished by a fine of not more than $200.00.  
(Code 1977, § 11-21)  
 
 State law references—Penalties for motor vehicle violations, Code of Virginia, § 46.2-
113; town prohibited from imposing a penalty for violation of motor vehicle ordinance in excess 
of that imposed by state for a similar offense, Code of Virginia, § 46.2-1300. 
Sec. 58-2.  Adoption of state law; former provisions.  
 
 (a) Pursuant to the authority of Code of Virginia, § 46.2-1313, all of the provisions 
and requirements of the laws of the Commonwealth contained in Code of Virginia, title 46.2 and 
in Code of Virginia, § 18.2-266 et seq. in effect July 1, 20152016, except those provisions which 
are contained elsewhere in this chapter and except those provisions and requirements the 
violation of which constitute a felony and except those provisions and requirements which by 
their very nature can have no application to or within the town, are adopted and incorporated in 
this chapter by reference and made applicable within the town. References to "highways of the 
state" contained in such provisions and requirements adopted in this subsection shall be deemed 
to refer to the streets, highways and other public ways within the town. Such provisions and 
requirements hereby adopted, mutatis mutandis, are made a part of this chapter as fully as though 
set forth at length in this chapter, and it shall be unlawful for any person within the town to 
violate or fail, neglect or refuse to comply with any provision of Code of Virginia, title 46.2 or of 
Code of Virginia, § 18.2-266 et seq., which is adopted by this section, provided that in no event 
shall the penalty imposed for the violation of any provision or requirement hereby adopted 
exceed the penalty imposed for a similar offense under Code of Virginia, title 46.2 or under Code 
of Virginia, § 18.2-266 et seq.  
 
Amendments to the above adopted and incorporated provisions of the laws of the 
Commonwealth of Virginia hereafter adopted by the Commonwealth of Virginia shall be 
incorporated herein on their respective effective dates unless specifically rejected by the 
governing body of the Town. 
 
 (b) The provisions of this section, as readopted, shall be effective as 12:01am July 1, 
2015 2016. As of such effective date, such readoption shall replace former section 58-2 as it 
existed prior to the effective date of readoption, provided that such repeal shall not affect any act 
or offense done or committed or any penalty or forfeiture incurred or any right established or suit 
or action pending on that day. Except as otherwise provided, neither the repeal of section 58-2 
nor the enactment of this readoption shall apply to offenses committed prior to the effective date 
of this section, and prosecution for such offense shall be governed by prior law, which is 
continued in effect for that purpose.  
(Code 1977, § 11-1; Ord. of 6-21-2001; Readopted 6-3-02, 6-2-03, 7-6-04, 6-16-05, 6-15-06, 6-
4-07, 6-2-08, 7-1-09, 6-17-10)  
 
 
Sec. 58-3.  Display of state license plate with current decal. 
 It shall be unlawful for any person to operate or for the owner or person in control thereof 
to knowingly permit the operation of, upon a street or highway of the town, 
 
3. Consider Adoption of the Office of Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Loan 

Page 25 of 58



Public Works Director Spurlock stated that the memo included in the packet shows a total 
amount of the package which is $965,400.  He stated that they gave two options.  He explained 
that Option 1 is a hardship with a hook requiring the Town to adjust the rates to their target rates.  
He explained the current residential water rate per quarter which is $29 per quarter.  He stated 
that to go along with Option 1 would require that the rates be raised to $49 per month.   
 
Public Works Director Spurlock also stated that they based this on statewide rates.  He suggested 
Option 2 and the term would be selected between 1 and 20 years.  He feels this would be an 11 
year term with an annual payment of under $100,000.  He stated that what he needs is 
concurrence from Council to respond in agreement to the letter selecting Option 2 with an 11 
year term. 
 
Vice Mayor Richardson asked if this was for the whole island. 
 
Public Works Director Spurlock advised that it is.  He added that this is also for antennas on the 
water tower, the data system and software. 
 
Councilman Taylor asked how much the Town was paying on the Water Bond that was recently 
paid off. 
 
Public Works Director Spurlock stated that it was right at $60,000. 
 
Councilman Taylor then asked when the other water bond is due. 
 
Mayor Tarr advised it is either 2018 or 2019.   
 
Councilman Taylor also asked how much that bond payment is per year. 
 
Town Manager Ritter stated that one is $117,654 per year and the other water bond is $149,042 
per year. 
 
Councilman Taylor proposed that when the water bonds are paid off he would like for the 
payments to go directly towards paying off this new water bond.    
 
Town Manager Ritter also advised that currently they have $149,262 going into the water 
reserves from this budget.   
 
Mayor Tarr stated that all of this is being paid out of the water revenues.  He added that when the 
bond goes away the money stays in the water fund.  He feels they need to look at some of the 
money going into capital improvements and maintenance on the system.  He added that this is 
the initial cost.  He suggested looking at the life of the meters and start putting away money for 
the replacements.   
 
Public Works Director Spurlock explained that this is why they didn’t pick a 40 year term.   
 
Mayor Tarr stated that they are recommending a rate review each year to make sure that what the 
Town is doing is sufficient. 
 

Page 26 of 58



Public Works Director Spurlock advised that this is done each year. 
 
Councilman Jester feels that the Town will save a lot of man hours. 
 
Public Works Director Spurlock added that it is better allocation. 
 
Councilman Jester also stated that there will be a big savings for the customers. 
 
Public Works Director Spurlock also stated that it will save in property damage as well. 
 
Mayor Tarr asked about the test project. 
 
Public Works Director Spurlock advised that it is going great. 
 
There were a few more comments. 
 
Councilman Frese stated that the water rent that everyone pays is covering this upgrade now.   
 
Public Works Director Spurlock agreed.  He added that by the time the state processes all of the 
paperwork the first payment isn’t due until the system is installed which will probably be August 
of 2017. 
 
Councilman Frese reiterated that the water payments go into the water fund and by the time the 
first payment is due the Town will have the money to make the payment. 
 
There were comments about the water reserves and the money being put away. 
 
Public Works Director Spurlock advised that they will submit a letter approving the selection of 
Option 2 and it won’t go to settlement until approximately April 2017.   
 
Councilman Frese motioned, seconded by Vice Mayor Richardson to proceed with Option 2 of 
the Office of Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Loan for the purchase of auto-read water 
meters.  Unanimously approved. 
 
 
4. Mayor & Council Announcements or Comments 
Councilman Leonard announced that the Swearing in Ceremony has been moved to May 28th at 
5:00 p.m. 
 
Councilman Jester stated that it has been a pleasure.  He wished the new Council luck and stated 
that they should enjoy themselves. 
 
Councilman Ellis asked about the paving for the Safe Routes to Schools.  He stated that it will be 
right up against the road.  He asked if there was going to be any guardrails or fencing. 
 
Public Works Director Spurlock stated that there will be a fence on the ditch side but not on the 
road side.   
 

Page 27 of 58



Councilman Ellis commented about cars parking along the roadside during baseball games. 
 
Public Works Director Spurlock stated that he and Chief Mills discussed this earlier.  He stated 
that it won’t damage the trail but there may be some issues. 
 
Councilman Ellis stated that there are new FOIA requirements which go into effect the beginning 
of next month.  He asked if the Town had a FOIA officer. 
 
Town Manager Ritter advised that he has a FOIA officer. 
 
Councilman Taylor stated that Mayor Tarr will be missed.  He also stated that he worked well 
with every political entity.  He added that Mayor Tarr stated that we are one with the Park 
Service.  He also stated that you miss the people you work with.  He added that when you look 
around it’s changed for the better.  Councilman Taylor also stated that the first time you run for 
Council and it’s time to vote he asked himself “do I vote for myself?”  He knew these are people 
they need.  He thanked Mayor Tarr for the times they stuck up at the meetings.  He also stated 
that he wasn’t just talking to the public. 
 
Councilman Frese told Mayor Tarr that they’ve had their differences and their agreements.  He 
stated that he admires him.  He feels he’s done a great job and provided leadership.  He also feels 
all of the citizens of Chincoteague admire him. 
 
Councilman Frese thanked Councilman Jester and stated that he has served admirably.   
 
Mayor Tarr stated that it has been a pleasure.  He also stated that the Town has a lot of small 
issues and a few larger issues.  He expressed concerned about social media and feels the Town 
needs to use it more.  He stated that social media can travel very fast.  He feels the Town has to 
think about being on social media every day getting the facts out.  He would like the Town to 
look at this.  He trusts those elected will take care of those issues.   
 
5. Closed Meeting in Accordance with Section 2.2-3711(A)(1) of the Code of Virginia. 

• Council Appointment of the Town Attorney 
Councilman Leonard moved, seconded by Councilman Frese to convene a closed meeting under 
Section 2.2-3711(A)(1) of the Code of Virginia to discuss Council Appointment (Town Attorney). 
Unanimously approved. 
 
Councilman Leonard moved, seconded by Vice Mayor Richardson to reconvene in regular 
session.  Unanimously approved. 
  
Councilman Taylor moved, seconded by Councilman Leonard to adopt a resolution of 
certification of the closed meeting.   
  
WHEREAS, the Chincoteague Town Council has convened a closed meeting on this date 
pursuant to an affirmative recorded vote and in accordance with the provisions of the Virginia 
Freedom of Information Act; and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 2.2-3711(A)(1) of the Code of Virginia requires a certification by this 
Town Council that such closed meeting was conducted in conformity with Virginia law; 

Page 28 of 58



 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Chincoteague Town Council hereby certifies 
that to the best of each member's knowledge, (i) only public business matters lawfully exempted 
from open meeting requirements by Virginia law were discussed in the closed meeting to which 
this certification resolution applies, and (ii) only such public business matters as were identified 
in the motion convening the closed meeting were heard, discussed or considered by the Town 
Council. 
 
VOTE:  Ayes- Jester, Frese, Leonard, Taylor, Ellis, Richardson 
  Nays- None 
  Absent- None  
 
 
Adjourn 
Councilman Leonard motioned, seconded by Councilman Frese to adjourn.  Unanimously 
approved. 
 
 
______________________________  _____________________________ 
Mayor       Attest:          Town Manager        

Page 29 of 58



Public Notice 
 

The Mayor, Town Council, & Planning Commission of the Town of Chincoteague will hold a joint public 
hearing on July 5, 2016 at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers located at 6150 Community Drive, 
Chincoteague Island, Virginia, 23336. The purpose of the hearing is to hear public comment on a 
proposed Town Code modification regarding Zoning/Sign Ordinance, Article VII Temporary 
Signs/Pennants. For additional information contact Mr. Ronald Marney, Director of Planning, phone 757-
336-6519 or visit the Town Offices at 6150 Community Drive, Chincoteague Island, Virginia, 23336. 

 
 
 
 

Page 30 of 58



 

 
 
 

 

MEMORANDUM 

     Town of Chincoteague, Inc.

 
 
 
Date:  July 5, 2016 
 
To:  Mayor & Town Council  
 
VIA:  Robert G. Ritter Jr., Town Manager 
  
From:  Ronald Marney, Planning Director 
 
Subject: Potential Code Amendment to Exempt Pennants Displaying the American 

Flag 
   

 

  
At the May 10th, 2016 Planning Commission meeting the Island Grocery owner raised the 
issue of the ability to display pennants depicting the American Flag. The property owner had 
applied for a permit to display pennants depicting the American Flag running the length of 
the entire front façade of the building. The permit application was denied due to it exceeding 
the length and duration limits set forth in 7.4.12 of the Town Code. After the May 10th 
meeting a review of the Town Code regarding American Flags and pennants was undertaken. 
The review was intended to determine if the signage desired to be displayed by the Island 
Grocery Store could be exempted from the requirements of Code 7.4.12. Based on the Town 
Code, the material displayed at the Planning Commission meeting and a subsequent meeting 
between the property owner and Town Staff, as well as research conducted by Town Staff the 
signage desired falls under the definition of a pennant. Research conducted by Town Staff 
found no exemption within Town, State, or Federal Code which addressed pennants 
displaying the American Flag.  
 
A desire to accommodate patriotic displays was expressed and to this end Town Staff 
researched potential code amendments. The Planning Commission discussed the following 
amendment to the Zoning Code at its June 14, 2016 meeting. The proposed revision adds an 
additional exemption to Code 7.4.12 directly addressing pennants displaying the American 
Flag. The Code modification defines the likeness of the American flag by referencing the 
applicable Executive Order and United States Code. This ensures that the exempted pennants 
are for patriotic displays not advertising purposes. After discussion by the Planning 
Commission the amended ordinance has been forwarded to the Mayor and Council for 
approval and joint public hearing. The recommended changes to the Town Code are as 
follows:  
   

Page 31 of 58



 
  
Sec. 7.4 Temporary Signs 
 
7.4.12. Pennants. There shall be no more than two fifty foot (50’) long pennants, or one (1) 
one hundred foot (100’) long pennant per business. Such placement shall not exceed two (2) 
times per calendar year not to exceed two (2) consecutive weeks for each placement. 
Nonprofit organizations are exempt from the above time limit provided the pennant or 
pennants are removed within seven day after the event has ended. Placement of such 
pennants must comply with Article VII of this ordinance. Pennants shall not be placed closer 
than ten feet (10’) from any property line. A permit is required. Pennants displaying the 
likeness of the American Flag are exempt from the above time & length limits. These 
pennants shall be no longer than the front façade of the main structure. The likeness of the 
American Flag must follow all the proper detail, proportions, and design as given in 
Executive Order 10834 / Chapter 1 of Title 4 of the United States Code. Any such pennant 
shall comply with all other applicable provisions of Article VII, except as expressly 
excepted. A permit is required. 
 
 
 

Page 32 of 58



Eagle Scout Project
Lawrence H Lederer

Chincoteague Troop 323

Page 33 of 58



What is the project?

•Construct a platform base with picnic table resting 
on top.

•Hand carve a scout emblem on table.

Page 34 of 58



Where will the project be conducted?

•Project construct will be at the Chincoteague 
Waterman’s Memorial.

Page 35 of 58



Community benefit

•Chincoteague residents and visitors will have a 
place to relax and enjoy the solitude of Mariners 
Point while at the same time having a place to 
picnic.

Page 36 of 58



When will project start?

• Immediately upon approval and funding.

Page 37 of 58



Deck/Platform

TOP
5.5 inch decking

12 feet

12 feet

Page 38 of 58



Deck/Platform Base Design

11 feet 10 inches

11 feet 10 inches

4X4

2X6 

24 inches

Screws used

5.5 inch decking direction

Page 39 of 58



Picnic Table

6 feet

6 feet

Security chain to base

Page 40 of 58



Scout emblem hand carved onto picnic table
in 1 to 4 locations

Page 41 of 58



Site location
Waterman’s Memorial at Mariner’s Point

Placed in a location where other scouts can build 
other table/bases

Page 42 of 58



Mayor & Council 
Two Year Committee Appointments 

July 5, 2016 – June 30, 2018 
 

Meeting Day and Time 

Budget & Personnel Committee     Subject to change by the Chairperson 
Ben Ellis - Chair        
Gene Wayne Taylor       2nd Tuesday @ 5:00 PM  
Arthur Leonard       Every Other Month 
 
Ordinance Committee 
Gene Wayne Taylor – Chair        
Denise Bowden       2nd Thursday @ 5:00 PM 
Jim Frese        Every Other Month 
 
Meals Tax Committee 
Jim Frese                            As needed during the budget process 
 
Harbor Committee 
Arthur Leonard – Chair       1st Thursday @ 5:00 PM  
Ben Ellis        Every Other Month 
 
Recreation & Community Enhancement Committee 
Denise Bowden – Chair 
Eddie Lewis        2nd Tuesday @ 5:00 PM  
Gene Wayne Taylor       Every Other Month 
 
Public Works Committee 
Ellen Richardson – Chair 
Arthur Leonard       1st Tuesday @ 5:00 PM 
Eddie Lewis         Every Other Month 
 
Planning Commission 
Ben Ellis        2nd Tuesday @ 7:00 PM 
 
Cemetery Committee 
Ellen Richardson – Chair      1st Thursday @ 6:00 PM 
Jim Frese        As needed 
 
Public Safety – Police, EMS, EOC  
Arthur Leonard - Chair 
Eddie Lewis        1st Tuesday @ 5:00 PM 
Denise Bowden       Every Other Month 
 
Liaison Committee 
Arthur Leonard  
Ellen Richardson       As needed 
Denise Bowden 
 
Chincoteague Recreation & Convention Center Authority 
Ben Ellis        2nd Monday @ 3:00 PM 
 
Notes: 
1. Trolley’s under Robert Ritter, General Government and Transportation issues under public works  
2. Chairperson may call an additional meeting or cancel meetings subject to the importance of the agenda item (’s). 

Page 43 of 58



 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 
                    THE TOWN OF CHINCOTEAGUE 
 

 
 

To:  Mayor & Town Council 
 
From:  Robert Ritter, Town Manager 
 
Date:  June 27, 2016 
 
Subject: Committee/Commission/Board Vacancy Appointments  
 
 
 
Two individuals have resigned from the Chincoteague Recreation and Convention Center Authority. 
They had a four (4) year term that ends December 4, 2018. We will need to fill the two vacancies for the 
term ending December 4, 2018. The following folks have shown interest for the two vacancies: 
 

1. Lee D. Armbuster 
2. Harry Stanely Thornton 
3. Jack G. Van Dame 
4. Cynthia Leonard Wilder 
5. Robert “Bob” Zoller 

 
 

Page 44 of 58



MINUTES OF THE JUNE 2, 2016 
HARBOR COMMITTEE 

 
 
Members Present:      Others Present:  
J. Arthur Leonard, Chairman    Robert Ritter, Town Manager  
John N. Jester, Councilman    Wayne Merritt, Harbormaster  
Mike Handforth     Vernon Merritt, Harbormaster 
Ernie Bowden      Harvey Spurlock, Public Works Director 
        
Call to Order  
Chairman J. Arthur Leonard called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m.  
 
Open Forum/Public Participation  
Mr. Danny Bowden asked about the increase in the rent for this year. Town Manager Ritter 
informed him that the increase was 3 percent each year.    
 
Agenda Adoption  
Councilman Jester motioned, seconded by Mr. Mike Handforth to adopt the agenda as presented. 
Unanimously approved.  
 
1. Harbormasters Update  
     A.  Harbormaster: 
           The parking lot near the Harbor Office has been paved recently.  There will now be room             
 for at least 80 parking spaces.  There have been a few problems with the fuel system                     
 which are being corrected.  A new pedestal has been ordered which will hopefully 
 allow all credit cards to be used as some are working fine and some are not.  

Councilman Jester asked if the Town could check with Rob Catron to see if there were 
 any funds available from FEMA for help with constructing a jetty.   

  
     B.  Subleases: 
           Harbormaster Wayne Merritt stated he had been doing some subleasing but due                       
           to the recent weather those numbers had been down. 
 
     C.  Parking Lot Pavement: 
 Mike Handforth asked about the stone that was removed from the area between   
 the road and the dock.  He was informed there was money in the new budget to   
 pave that area.   

It was discussed to get it paved now and pay back the money after July 1 to the   
 Harbor Fund. Public Works Director Spurlock will contact Branscome to see if   
 this is possible. 
 
     D.  Available Slips:  
 There were some slips that became available and they have since been leased. 
 
 

Page 45 of 58



     E.  Questions  
Vernon Merritt had a Boy Scout approach him about building an enclosure for the   
 trash cans.  The committee agreed it was an excellent idea and suggested the young  

  man come to the next Harbor meeting and discuss it further.   
  Mr. Vernon Merritt also asked about the port-a-lets on the other side.  Town             
  Manager Ritter stated due to state health regulations they had to remain in place. 
 
2.  Discuss Travel Lift at Curtis Merritt Harbor 
 Mr. Keith Mummert came before the Committee to discuss the travel lift.  He stated the 
 infrastructure would remain the property of the Town.  The lift itself would be provided 
 by investors that Mr. Mummert has already contacted.   
 Councilman Jester stated we would need a contract with Mr. Mummert for the operation 
 of the lift.   
 The committee agreed that this would be a great idea but they have concern as to where 
 the money will come from. 
 Councilman Jester motioned and seconded by Mr. Ernie Bowden to send this matter to 

Council for further legal advice and possible funding.   
 
3. Discuss Revenue and Expenditures 
 Town Manager Ritter asked if there were any questions concerning the revenue and 
 expenditures. 
 Mr. Ernie Bowden asked where the Harbormasters pay came from was it all from the 

Harbor Fund or was some of it from the General Government Fund.  Town Manager 
Ritter explained that eighty percent comes from the Harbor Fund and twenty percent 
comes from the General Government Fund.   

 He also questioned the 3% raise in cost and where those figures came from.  Town 
 Manager Ritter explained that it came from the amount we have been increasing over the 
 past years.  For over 10 years the Town has never increased more or less than the 3%.   
  
4.  Committee Member Comments 

Mr. Handforth asked about parking trailers in the north side of the berm.  It was 
suggested that it would not be an option due to the frag mites and the controlled burns 
that happen in that area.   

 
Adjourn: 
 Mr. Mike Handforth motioned, seconded by Councilman Jester to adjourn the meeting. 
  

Page 46 of 58



 

 
 
 

 

MEMORANDUM 

     Town of Chincoteague, Inc.

 
 
 
 
 
Date:  May 31, 2016 
 
To:  Harbor Committee 
 
From:  Robert Ritter, Town Manager 
  
Subject: Travel lift 
    

 

  
We have an individual (Keith) that wants to place a travel lift at the Harbor. The estimate 
attached has it costing $35,000.00 to put the infrastructure in place for the travel lift to run 
across. 
  
The $35,000.00 is just a number not to exceed, what Keith really needs is the Approval from 
the Harbor Committee and the new Council that will take place in July for the project to go 
forward. They are holding the travel lift for Keith but without the commitment he may lose 
the option to purchase the travel lift. 
 
We will need to discuss the funding since this will be a permanent structure set up in the 
Harbor. We started this years ago with Fisher Marine but it never came to fruition. 
 
  
  
 

Page 47 of 58



 

 
Page 48 of 58



Public Safety Meeting Minutes 
June 7, 2016 

 
 

Chairman Tarr called the meeting to order at 17:00 
 
Present: Mayor Tarr, Chairman 
   Councilman Frese   
   Robert Ritter, Jr., Town Manger 
   Bryan Rush, EM Coordinator 
   Randy Mills, Police Chief 
   Brian Lewis, Asst. Police Chief 
    
Absent: Councilman Jester 
       
Public Participation 
Raymond Rosenberger advised the committee of the Zika seminar held last Saturday at the 
Chincoteague Center. He recommended that the Town place information on Zika in the 
quarterly newsletter. Mr. Rosenberger also asked if there has been a discussion on using Narcan 
amongst the EMS and/or Police Department for drug overdoses. Mr. Rush advised that EMS 
does have and use Narcan for overdoses. 
 
Agenda Adoption 
A motion to adopt the agenda was made by Councilman Frese and seconded by Chairman Tarr. 
Motion unanimously passed. 
 
1. Emergency Management Report 
 
PLANNING 
 
ANTARES 
Orbital Sciences has announced that the next Antares launch (OA-5) window is scheduled for 
July 10th to July 15th.  The hot fire test was held May 31, 2016. There was a meeting with 
NASA, USFW, NPS, USCG, Accomack County, and the Town of Chincoteague on May 26, 
2016, to plan for the upcoming launch. A secondary meeting will be held June 23, once more 
information is available from the hot fire test. 
 
Councilman Frese asked if the danger area was the same. Manager Ritter explained that it could 
be different for every rocket due to the size. 
 
HAZZARD MITIGATION  
The Hazard Mitigation Planning is ongoing. There was held another meeting of the group 
planning committee June 1. The final draft is scheduled for early fall 2016. 
 
EXERCISE 
The “Operation Ticking Clock” exercise AAR was released on May 16. We will be using the 

Page 49 of 58



improvement matrix in our EOP revision in the upcoming year. 
 
CONTINUITY OF OPERATIONS PLAN 
Staff will be reviewing the COOP and updating. New office procedures along with a change in 
personnel necessitate an update at this time. 
 
FIREWORKS  
The operational planning meeting is to be held June 7, at 10 AM. 
 
LCAR 
The Local Capability Assessment Report is being populated with a due date to VDEM of July 1, 
2016. The report gives VDEM and FEMA a picture of a community’s capabilities and the 
funding modalities to enhance those capabilities. 
 
LOGISTICS 
 
CITIZEN CORPS COUNCIL GRANT 
The Eastern Shore Disaster Preparedness Coalition is supporting a Health Department Grant to 
enhance the Citizen Corps Council on the Shore. The Citizen Corp encompasses the Medical 
Reserve Corps and Community Emergency Response Team (CERT). 
 
EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 
May 2016 was the busiest of record for Chincoteague EMS/CVFC EMS with 103 recorded 
incidents.  
 
TRAINING 
 
SOCIAL MEDIA IN DISASTERS 
A course in Social Media for Disasters through the National Preparedness Institute in Hawaii 
has been secured for the Shore. This is a competitive process at the state level; however, the 
Eastern Shore Disaster Preparedness Coalition was able to not only justify the course, attendees 
are coming from other areas of the state where our folks would have had to travel to. The course 
will be held at the ESCC computer lab June 16, 2016, from 9 AM until 5 PM. The maximum 24 
students have been reached. The Town will be sending one from the Police Department and two 
from General Government to enhance our use of social media in disasters. The course is paid 
for by FEMA. 
 
OPERATIONS 
 
DAILY WEATHER MONITORING 
Daily weather monitoring is on-going, with situational awareness emails sent to department 
heads as necessary. 
 
PUBLIC INFORMATION 
 
PREPAREDNESS 
Disaster preparedness information will continue on the Town’s web page, information kiosk in 

Page 50 of 58



the office, and on the quarterly newsletter. April’s information encourages citizens to 
develop/revise their personal disaster plans and have a disaster supply kit to sustain them in the 
event of an emergency for at least five days. 
 
 
HURRICANE SEASON 
The official Hurricane Season began on June 1. 
Forecast as of April 1, 2016: 
13 Named Storms (Includes Alex from 01/16 and Bonnie 5/16) 
5 Hurricanes 
2 Major Hurricanes (Cat 3 or >) 
 
ZIKA 
There was a public ZIKA seminar held at the Community Center on Saturday, June 4. The 
seminar was sponsored by the Accomack County Health Department and was held to educate 
the public about the Zika virus and the ways people can protect themselves as well as mitigation 
strategies to lessen mosquito populations. 
 
METH LABS 
The Captains Cove CERT Team will be having a community presentation on Meth Labs June 
28, 2016, beginning at 7:00 PM, at the Community Building in Captains Cove. The well 
informed speaker will be our Region 5 HAZMAT Officer Todd Cannon. There are more and 
more of these labs being discovered in communities and recognition is the key. From cars, to 
trailers, to homes, and even businesses, methamphetamines are being manufactured daily and 
Mr. Cannon will teach the general public on what to look for and what to do should you 
encounter such activity as well as the extreme dangers that come with it. Please support 
Captains Cove CERT and learn to keep your own neighborhoods safe. 
 
2. Chincoteague Volunteer Fire Company Report 
No member present. 
 
3. Towing and Recovery Plan 
Asst. Chief Lewis of the Chincoteague PD explained the current progress of the Towing and 
Recovery Plan. Asst. Chief Lewis presented the recommended ordinances from the Towing 
Advisory Board. Asst. Chief Lewis stated that under the plan the towing companies would be 
under contract for towing in areas of no parking as well as setting a fixed price for the Town 
should our vehicles need towed. Chief Mills stated that this plan would also shore up no parking 
issues during special events. Asst. Chief Lewis stated that this would also allow the Town the 
ability to more easily to remove cars/property from Town owned property. Mayor Tarr asked as 
to who will enforce the ordinance. Asst. Chief Lewis stated that the police department would 
enforce it. Mayor Tarr states that he does not have any problems with the ordinance package 
except for no parking on Maddox Blvd. Chief Mills stated that it was just a recommendation. 
Coordinator Rush recommended that if the Maddox Blvd. parking ordinance became a reality, 
then use the dates May 15 thru September 15 to catch the Labor Day holiday. Mayor Tarr 
doesn’t know how no parking will help the issues as most are due to those backing out onto the 
road. Coordinator Rush stated that this would make the area more safe by preventing blind spots 

Page 51 of 58



and those walking into traffic. Mayor Tarr stated that the new council would probably want to 
hold a public hearing on the matter. Chief Mills recommends striking the Maddox Blvd. parking 
to allow the rest of the towing plan to move forward. Mayor Tarr motioned to send the 
ordinances to Council without the Maddox. Blvd. parking issue. Councilman Frese 
provided a second to the motion. The motion was unanimously approved. 
 
4. Committee Member Comments 
Mayor Tarr is concerned about fire inspections. Mayor Tarr recommends having Mr. Kenny 
Lewis and Fire Chief Thornton should get together and decide on a plan. Mayor Tarr read an 
excerpt from a letter given by the Accomack County Department of Public Safety concerning 
the State Fire Marshall. Currently, the State Fire Marshall only inspects new construction. 
Mayor Tarr wants inspections of all buildings and that an employee must be designated 
according to the state code. Manager Ritter asked if that would fall to the Fire Chief. Mayor 
Tarr states that it falls somewhere down the line but someone must be designated so that the 
Town is not liable for doing “nothing”. Mayor Tarr suggests that the Town’s attorney research 
this state code portion. The county fire marshal will be inspecting all county buildings on 
Chincoteague. 
 
Mayor Tarr questioned the issue of bike signs and what the meaning of such was. Manager 
Ritter explained that the signs were to ride with traffic and walk against. The issue would be 
taken up by the Recreation and Community Enhancement Committee. A discussion ensued on 
safe riding areas. 
 
Coordinator Rush thanked Mayor Tarr for his service over the many years to public safety and 
wished him luck in his retirement. 
 
Adjournment 
 
A motion to adjourn was made by Councilman Frese and a second given by Chairman Tarr. The 
motion was unanimously approved. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 17:35 
 

Page 52 of 58



 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Date: 06/28/2016 

To:  Mayor & Council 

From: Chief Mills 

RE:  Amendment to Chapter 58 Article VI 

 Staff requests that Council pass a motion to amend Chapter 58, 
Article VI, Stopping, Standing and Parking to require parking signs and 
establish vehicle towing regulations. 

 Specifically: 

Sec. 58-170.  Removal and disposition of unattended vehicles.  
 (a) Whenever any vehicle, trailer or semi-trailer is found on the public streets or public 
grounds unattended by the owner or operator and constitutes a hazard to traffic or is parked in such 
manner as to be in violation of law or whenever any vehicle, trailer or semi-trailer is left unattended for 
more than ten days upon any privately owned property other than the property of the owner of such 
vehicle, trailer or semi-trailer, within the town, or is abandoned upon such privately owned property, 
without the permission of the owner, lessee or occupant thereof, such vehicle, trailer or semi-trailer may 
be removed for safekeeping by or under the direction of a police officer to a storage garage or area. 
However, no such vehicle shall be so removed from privately owned premises without the written 
request of the owner, lessee or occupant thereof. The person at whose request such vehicle, trailer or 
semi-trailer is removed from privately owned property shall indemnify the town against any loss or 
expense incurred because of removal, storage or sale thereof. Each removal shall be reported 
immediately to the police department, and notice thereof shall be given to the owner of the vehicle, 
trailer or semi-trailer as promptly as possible.  
      
 (b) The owner of such vehicle, trailer or semi-trailer, before obtaining possession thereof, 

Page 53 of 58



shall pay to the town towing company all reasonable costs incidental to the removal, storage and 
locating the owner of such vehicle, trailer or semi-trailer. Should such owner fail or refuse to pay the 
cost or should the identity or whereabouts of such owner be unknown and unascertainable after a 
diligent search has been made and after notice to him at his last known address and to the holder of 
any lien of record in the office of the state department of motor vehicles against the vehicle, trailer or 
semi-trailer, the chief of police or other officer designated by the town council may, after holding the 
vehicle, trailer or semi-trailer 60 days and after due notice of sale, dispose of the vehicle, trailer or semi-
trailer at public sale, and the proceeds from the sale shall be forwarded by the selling officer to the town 
treasurer. However, if the value of such vehicle, trailer or semi-trailer is determined by three 
disinterested dealers or garagemen to be less than $50.00 which would be incurred by such advertising 
and public sale, it may be disposed of by private sale or junked. The town treasurer shall pay from the 
proceeds of the sale the cost of removal, storage, investigation as to ownership and liens and notice of 
sale, and the balance of such funds shall be held by him for the owner and paid to the owner upon 
satisfactory proof of ownership.  
 
 (c) If no claim has been made by the owner for the proceeds of such sale, after the 
payment of the cost of $50.00, the funds may be deposited to the town's general fund or any special 
fund. Any such owner shall be entitled to apply to the town within three years from the date of such 
sale, and, if timely application is made therefor, the town shall pay the funds to the owner without 
interest or other charges. No claim shall be made nor shall any suit, action or proceeding be instituted 
for the recovery of such funds after three years from the date of such sale. 

 
Parking on private property. 
 
 No person shall stand or park a vehicle on any private lot or lot area without the 
express or implied consent of the owner thereof. Whenever signs or markings have been 
erected on any lot or lot area contiguous or adjacent to a street, thoroughfare or alley 
indicating that no vehicles are permitted to stand or park thereon, it shall be unlawful for 
any person to drive a vehicle across any curb or lot line or over any driveway from a 
street or alley into such lot or area for the purpose of standing or parking such vehicle or 
for any person to stop, stand or park any vehicle in such lot or lot area. All such 
violations where the property has been properly marked, the vehicle shall be towed and 
stored for safe keeping. 
 

Violation of parking regulations on Town-owned or leased property prohibited. 
It shall be unlawful for any person to park any motor vehicle of a type or in a 

manner which violates the provisions of any rule or regulation restricting the parking of 
motor vehicles. Any violation of this ordinance shall be towed at owner expense. 

All Town of Chincoteague owned or leased property shall be posted with 
permanent signs, clearly visible during daytime and nighttime hours, shall be posted at all 
entrances to the parking area that conspicuously disclose that such vehicle shall be towed. 

Signs, at a minimum 
• Shall be made of metal 
• 18 inches high and 12 inches wide 
• Contain Reflective graphics  
• Contain International towing symbol 
• Contain “Towing Enforced” 
• Allowable length of parking 

Page 54 of 58



• Contain “If towed call 757-336-3155” 
• If posted on a government road must meet VDOT requirements 
 

  Presumption of guilt of vehicle owner violating Sec. 58-226. 
In any prosecution under Sec. 58-226, proof that the vehicle described in the 

complaint, summons or warrant was parked in violation of such rule or regulation, 
together with proof that the defendant was at the time of such parking the registered 
owner of the vehicle, as required by Code of Virginia, Section 46.2-600 shall constitute 
in evidence a rebuttable presumption that such registered owner of the vehicle was the 
person who parked the vehicle at the place where and for the time during which such 
violation occurred. 

 
  No parking area for Special Events 
1. There shall be no parking on the last Wednesday in July from 0500 until 1600, on 
Ridge Road from Pony Swim Lane to Bunting Road. There will be no parking on Beebe 
Road or Main Street from Beebe Road to Davis Street. 
2. There shall be no parking during the 4th of July Fireworks on the following 
streets, Jester Street, Willow Street and Pension Street. 
Any violation of this ordinance shall be towed at owner expense. 
 
   Established; general authority.  
 There is hereby established a committee to be known as the Towing Advisory 
Board, a sub-committee of the Public Safety Committee, to act as an advisory committee 
of the town council with regard to the provision of the towing ordinances, and other 
policies relative to towing. 

· State law reference- Localities may regulate removal or immobilization of 
trespassing vehicles adopting or amending any ordinance pursuant to § 46.2-1232 
or § 46.2-1233. 

 
•State law reference- Provisions of   § 46.2-1209, § 46.2-1213 and § 46.2-1217 

vehicles  
 

 

Page 55 of 58



 

 
 
 

 

MEMORANDUM 

     Town of Chincoteague, Inc.

 
 
 
Date:  July 5, 2016 
 
To:  Mayor, Town Council, & Planning Commission  
  
VIA:  Robert Ritter, Town Manager 
 
From:  Planning Commission and Wastewater Advisory Committee 
 
Subject: Firm Recommended for Scope & Fee Negotiations Regarding Wastewater 

District 
   

 

  
This report is intended to provide an overview of the efforts / progress made by the 
Wastewater Advisory Committee (WAC) and to seek approval from the Mayor and Council 
to proceed with scope and fee negotiations.  
 
The Town of Chincoteague is faced with public service needs/responsibilities beyond those 
of the average small community. Alternative methods for wastewater treatment are necessary 
in order to support local industry and tourism that are the basis of the Town’s economy as 
well as to safeguard health of citizens and the environment. Other coastal communities 
through regulation have been forced to implement wastewater utility systems. Rather than 
waiting and having the issue forced it is better to be proactive and pursue the matter at a pace 
that prevents negative economic impacts.  
 
Since the conception of the Wastewater Advisory Committee (WAC) the committee has 
researched alternatives and conducted studies in order to present recommendations for 
actions addressing wastewater within the Town of Chincoteague. In June of 2013 WAC 
completed a Wastewater Management Plan. The Wastewater Management Plan served as the 
basis for developing a Request for Qualifications (RFQ). The focus of the Wastewater 
Management Plan and the RFQ was on Maddox Boulevard and Main Street, since they serve 
as the commercial corridor for the Town. By creating a commercial corridor to develop a 
wastewater district for this area the Town of Chincoteague will be able to place the burden 
for initial construction on business who will be the users rather than the general population. 
The plan and RFQ are explorative and participation / hook-up is not intended to be 
mandatory. The system would be expandable in order to provide the potential to provide 
services to other parts of the community in the future. 
 

Page 56 of 58



The RFQ was circulated to multiple firms and posted in the Eastern Shore Post and on the 
Town Website. The main questions asked of firms by the RFQ was to test the validity of the 
June 2016 Wastewater Management Plan, identify the appropriate management entity for any 
potential wastewater system on the island, and to present qualifications to show the ability to 
assist the Town in moving forward with recommended wastewater treatment alternatives. 
The Town received multiple responses to the RFQ which resulted in three firms (Clark 
Nexsen, Duffield Associates, & GMB) providing detailed presentations to a panel for review. 
All firms indicated that the Wastewater Management Plan served as an excellent base. All 
firms also indicated that the Town is the ideal management entity. By having the Town 
manage the wastewater it will lower overall cost and allow control of the rates, but remain 
with the Town and the citizens. The presentations enabled the panel to meet with and 
evaluate the firms and the potential team strategies they would provide to move forward. 
 
The Wastewater Advisory Committee completed the review of the firms and their RFQ 
presentations on June 27, 2016 and ranked them accordingly. The ranking for each firm took 
into account twenty (20) criteria (Team Structure, Knowledge of Regulations, Knowledge of 
Funding, etc.) and ranked each 0-5. The score for each criteria was then added and compared 
between the firms to determine the final ranking. The WAC review panel has ranked the 
firms as follows: Duffield Associates #1, GMB #2, & Clark Nexsen #3. The Planning 
Commission reviewed the ranking of the firms. After discussion the Planning Commission 
decided to send the recommended firm (Duffield Associates) to the Mayor and Council for 
approval and to proceed with scope and fee negotiations.  
 
Staff and the Planning Commission is recommending a motion that could read as: 

“Move to proceed with scope and fee negotiations with Duffield Associates and bring the 
results of the scope and fee negotiations back to the Council for approval.” 

Page 57 of 58



Page 58 of 58


	REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
	CALL TO ORDER
	INVOCATION BY COUNCILMAN ELLIS
	PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	OPEN FORUM / PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
	STAFF UP-DATE
	AGENDA ADDITIONS/DELETIONS AND ADOPTION:
	1. Consider Adoption of the Minutes
	• Regular Council Meeting of June 6, 2016
	• Special Council Meeting of June 16, 2016
	2. Selection of the Vice Mayor
	3. Joint Public Hearing with the Planning Commission on Zoning Ordinance 7.4.12 Pennants
	4. Eagle Scout Project
	5. Committee Appointments and Assignments
	6. The Center Appointments
	7. Harbor Committee Report of June 2, 2016
	• Recommend a future Travel Lift
	8. Public Safety Committee Report of June 7, 2016
	• Possible adoption of the Towing Ordinance
	9. Selection of a Wastewater Consultant
	10. Approval of Banking Account Signatures
	11. Mayor & Council Announcements or Comments
	12. Closed Meeting in Accordance with Section 2.2-3711(A) (1) of the Code of Virginia.
	• Council Appointment
	ADJOURN:



